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>>  C O R P O R AT E  P R O F I L E

W-H ENERGY SERVICES, INC. IS A DIVERSIFIED OILFIELD SERVICE COMPANY 

WITH OPERATIONS IN TWO SEGMENTS – DRILLING RELATED PRODUCTS 

AND SERVICES AND COMPLETION AND WORKOVER RELATED PRODUCTS  

AND SERVICES. OUR DRILLING SEGMENT INCLUDES A VARIETY OF TOOLS, 

PRODUCTS AND PERSONNEL THAT ARE CRUCIAL TO THE DRILLING OF OIL 

AND NATURAL GAS WELLS. PRODUCTS AND SERVICES PROVIDED BY OUR 

COMPLETION AND WORKOVER SEGMENT CONTRIBUTE TO THE 

COMPLETION OF AND PRODUCTION FROM OIL AND NATURAL GAS WELLS.

WE ARE A COLLECTION OF TWELVE BUSINESSES EMPLOYING OVER 2,000 

SERVICE FOCUSED AND PROBLEM SOLVING INDIVIDUALS. OUR OPERATIONS 

ARE PRIMARILY FOCUSED IN THE GULF COAST REGION OF THE UNITED 

STATES AND IN SELECT INTERNATIONAL LOCATIONS. FROM THE JOB SITE 

TO THE BACK OFFICE, FROM THE RESEARCH FACILITY TO THE BOARDROOM, 

WE ARE MOTIVATED TO DO MORE, TO INNOVATE, TO GROW.

SINCE OUR INCEPTION IN 1989, WE HAVE FORMED OR ACQUIRED A NUMBER 

OF BUSINESSES THAT HAVE BROADENED OUR PRODUCT AND SERVICE 

OFFERING. MOST OF THESE BUSINESSES CONTINUE TO BE MANAGED BY 

THEIR FORMER OWNERS AND KEY MANAGERS. WE BELIEVE THAT THIS 

PROVIDES W-H ENERGY WITH A COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE.

OUR COMMON STOCK IS TRADED ON THE NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE 

UNDER THE TICKER SYMBOL WHQ.
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“  HOW YOU EXECUTE YOUR BUSINESS  
STRATEGY IS MORE CHALLENGING WHEN 
THINGS ARE GOING YOUR WAY, THAN WHEN 
YOUR ONLY THOUGHT IS SURVIVAL.”
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We entered 2006 with an upcycle in 

full bloom. Some industry analysts 

suggest that there are reasons to 

believe this cycle is not nearing an end. They cite the fact that 

while domestic drilling activity has increased in each of the last 

three years, the year-over-year increases in rig activity have not 

been as large as that which occurred in the upswing from 1999 

to 2001. This exaggerated increase in rig count coupled with a 

decline in the price of natural gas led to a substantial reduction 

in drilling activity in 2002. In our primary offshore market, the 

Gulf of Mexico, there has been no increase in drilling. In 

addition, many analysts believe that the supply/demand 

situation with respect to oil and natural gas remains very 

positive, especially with respect to natural gas which accounts 

for more than 80% of the domestic drilling rig count. For the 

third straight year, natural gas prices have increased and have 

consistently held above historic levels even through the 

relatively mild winter just concluded. The point is, despite 

relatively high prices for natural gas, the increased drilling that 

has occurred over the last few years has yet to provide enough 

supply to cause prices to fall back to their historic levels.

Do we share this enthusiasm and positive outlook? Yes, we do. 

But your management team at W-H has experienced numerous 

cycles since 1970 and if there is one lesson to learn, it is to 

remain ever vigilant during upcycles. How you execute your 

business strategy is more challenging when things are going 

your way, than when your only thought is survival. That 

strategy must be designed in a manner that enables a timely 

response to changes in the marketplace which are not 

anticipated – whether positive or negative.

Our focus will continue to be on organic growth supplemented 

by acquisitions which extend our geographic reach or add a 

new service or product. Our organic growth will be driven by 

capital expenditures which increase our revenue capacity. These 

capacity additions will be directed more towards geographic 

expansion as opposed to increasing our capacity in areas we 

already serve. We have significant expansion potential in this 

country, particularly in the Rocky Mountain region, which  

is our major targeted growth area for the next few years.

Also, in 2006 a primary objective will be to demonstrate  

the revenue and profit potential from our recently commer-

cialized technologies including our PathMaker® 3-Dimensional 

Rotary Steerable (3DRS) tool, our Array Wave Resistivity 

(AWR™) tool and other new technologies in our drilling 

services segment. Our 2006 capital expenditure program 

provides for a substantial increase in capacity for these new 

technologies. We do anticipate our international revenues 

increasing over the next few years and we plan to introduce 

many of our new technologies to these markets as well.

During 2005 our revenues grew to $634 million from  

$462 million in 2004. Our earnings per share from continuing 

operations were $1.68 up from $0.71 in 2004. This increase 

was generated by improved results from both of our segments 

and was supported by earnings improvement from all service 

lines within each segment. The largest single gains were 

recorded in our drilling segment and this improvement resulted 

in operating income from both segments being at about the 

same level. Achieving and maintaining this balance in our 

earnings is an important part of our strategy.

Our balance sheet also improved during 2005 as we finished 

with net debt representing about 31% of our total capital 

which was an improvement from 39% during the prior year.  

In addition, available borrowing capacity under our credit line 

at year end was $202 million.

Today, our greatest challenge is managing our people resources 

to keep pace with the growth of our market. Thus far, we have 

been successful in this endeavor. The key to that success is 

embedded in our belief that the dedicated employees of W-H 

are by far its greatest asset.

KEN WHITE, JR.
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

>>  T O  T H E  S H A R E H O L D E R S  O F  W- H
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A s a newly public company in 2000, W-H was primarily 
focused in the offshore drilling portion of the oilfield 
services industry. At that time our drilling segment 

provided over 80% of our operating income. Through a combination of 
strategic acquisitions and internal growth initiatives, we have increased our 
exposure to the completion and workover side of the service business and 
our presence in the land portion of both business segments. As a result, our 
completion and workover group provided the majority of the W-H operating 
income throughout most of 2003 and 2004. However, 2005 saw these segments 
(two tasty desserts) reach a relative balance. As we enter 2006, we anticipate 
that our drilling segment will, with the further introduction of new technology 
and increasing land presence, continue its positive earnings trend. The outlook 
is equally positive for our completion and workover services where the primary 
growth will be geographic expansion. We will continue to strive for balance in 
the sources of our earnings (seeking sweet spots in the industry) from both a 
service line and a geographic perspective.
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“ A BALANCED DIET IS A 
COOKIE IN EACH HAND.”
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“…  IF YOU WANT THE RAINBOW, YOU GOTTA  
PUT UP WITH THE RAIN.”
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While everyone enjoys positive market conditions,         
a company can often distinguish itself by what  
it does in down markets. Preceding the recent 

improvement in industry activity, W-H Energy increased research and 
development spending, maintained its capital expenditures program and 
increased employee headcount. We did not hide from the elements and seek 
cover by taking a more conservative approach. Our strategy was based on        
the conviction that the most recent downturn was not going to be protracted 
and was more of an interruption of a major upcycle. Thus, the downpour that 
began in late 2001 and continued into 2003 was converted into an advantage. 
We attracted good people and acquired assets at reasonable prices. We further 
expanded our bases of operation from both a geographic and a capability 
perspective. We continued to develop and produce high technology tools  
and services. This strategy of building our business throughout the downturn 
has had a very positive impact on the long-term value of W-H and will help 
protect us from future storms.
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I n the past few years, W-H Energy has grown significantly; we have 
taken advantage of market conditions both good and bad. But, what 
matters most is where we go from here. We remain cautious as it 

relates to the acquisition market and we are mindful of the importance of not 
oversupplying the areas we currently serve. While the majority of our operations 
have been focused in the Gulf Coast region, and we intend to maintain our 
foothold in this key market, there remain many opportunities for further 
expansion of our services lines within North America. We intend to aggressively 
pursue opportunities through our recently announced expansion in the Rocky 
Mountain region. This will initially focus on our completion and workover 
services and the rental tool portion of our drilling segment, but it will also 
include the roll-out of some of our new technologies. We believe this strategy 
will provide W-H Energy with the ability to climb to new and greater heights.
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“ THE GREAT THING IN THIS WORLD IS  
NOT SO MUCH WHERE WE STAND, AS  
IN WHAT DIRECTION WE ARE MOVING.”
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>>  F I N A N C I A L  H I G H L I G H T S

W-H Energy Services, Inc.

UNAUDITED RECONCILIATION OF NON-GAAP MEASURES (1)

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2005  2004

CONSOLIDATED INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS:

Income from continuing operations (as reported) $ 48,953  $ 20,049

 a) Warehouse fire related costs  3,690  —
  Less: Tax impact of fire related costs  (1,445)  —

  After tax charge of fire related costs  2,245  —

 b) Tax related items  (1,127)  —

 c) Write-off of non-cash financing costs  —   3,123 
  Less: Tax impact of write-off  —  (1,202)

After tax write-off  —   1,921
 Income from continuing operations before select items $ 50,071 $ 21,970 

PER DILUTED COMMON SHARE INFORMATION:

 Income from continuing operations (as reported) $ 1.68 $ 0.71 

  a) Warehouse fire related costs, net of tax  0.08  —

  b) Tax related items  (0.04)  —
  c) Write-off of non-cash financing costs, net of tax  —  0.07

  Income from continuing operations before select items $ 1.72 $ 0.78

CONSOLIDATED OPERATING INCOME:

Total operating income (as reported) $ 91,024  $ 43,620 
 Warehouse fire related costs  3,690   —

  Total operating income before select items $ 94,714 $ 43,620

DRILLING SEGMENT OPERATING INCOME:

Drilling segment operating income (as reported) $ 51,081 $ 22,651
 Warehouse fire related costs  3,690  —

  Drilling segment operating income before select items $ 54,771 $ 22,651

(1) Management believes that the non-GAAP measures included within this annual report and used in the graphs on the following page are used by financial analysts and inves-

tors to provide comparative financial information regarding the continuing operations of the Company, particularly with regard to select items including the Company’s new 

credit facility that was obtained in June 2004, the fire that occurred in April 2005 and the result of a 2005 foreign tax audit. These measures should not be considered as an 

alternative to net income or any other measure of operating performance calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
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(In thousands, except per share data)

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2005  2004  2003  2002  2001

Statements of Operations Information:

REVENUES

Drilling $ 409,155 $ 302,788 $ 242,085 $ 205,177 $ 253,068
Completion and workover  225,206  159,640  125,098  80,645  78,087

  Total revenues  634,361  462,428  367,183  285,822  331,155

Cost of revenues  357,787  269,897  209,118  157,169  171,151

Selling, general and 

 administrative expense  108,946  87,772  71,078  56,717  54,063

Warehouse fire related costs  3,690  —  —  —  —

Research and 

 development expense  16,275  15,474  11,241  9,954  7,923
Depreciation and amortization  56,639  45,665  36,032  29,083  23,941

Income from operations  91,024  43,620  39,714  32,899  74,077

Interest expense 

 and other expense, net (1)  10,777  11,023  8,168  6,715  7,606
Provision 
 for income taxes  31,294  12,548  12,145  10,081  26,130

Income from continuing operations  48,953  20,049  19,401  16,103  40,341
Income (loss) from discontinued 
 operations, net of tax  —  (2,126)  (140)  172  1,079

Net income $ 48,953 $ 17,923 $ 19,261 $ 16,275 $ 41,420

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

 Basic

  From continuing operations $ 1.74 $ 0.73 $ 0.71 $ 0.61 $ 1.67
  From discontinued operations  —  (0.08)  —  0.01  0.04

   Total $ 1.74 $ 0.65 $ 0.71 $ 0.62 $ 1.71

 Diluted

  From continuing operations $ 1.68 $ 0.71 $ 0.69 $ 0.58 $ 1.51
  From discontinued operations  —  (0.07)  —  0.01  0.04

   Total $ 1.68 $ 0.64 $ 0.69 $ 0.59 $ 1.55

NUMBER OF SHARES USED IN 
COMPUTING EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

 Basic  28,135  27,528  27,190  26,360  24,208

 Diluted  29,086  28,201  27,942  27,371  26,652

BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION

Total assets $ 622,775 $ 548,611 $ 501,325 $ 441,062 $ 384,611
Total debt $ 165,000 $ 180,805 $ 177,725 $ 147,305 $ 122,225

(1) The 2004 amount includes the write-off of approximately $3.1 million ($1.9 million, after tax) of non-cash financing costs associated with our previous credit facility.

1.0 >> SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

W-H Energy Services, Inc. 
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Set forth below is a description of the matters that we consider to be important to understanding the results of our operations for each of 

the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005, and our capital resources and liquidity as of December 31, 2005 and 2004. Our 

discussion begins with an overview of the significant factors that have recently affected our company, including a discussion of industry 

market trends and management’s perspectives regarding the opportunities and challenges we face during 2006 and beyond. Next, we 

analyze the results of our operations for the last three years. A summary follows of the critical accounting judgments and estimates that 

we have made which we believe are most important to an understanding of our Management’s Discussion and Analysis and our consoli-

dated financial statements, as well as a discussion of recently issued accounting pronouncements. Finally, we review our cash flows and 

liquidity, capital resources and contractual commitments. 

The following discussion includes various forward-looking statements about the markets in which we operate, the demand for our 

products and services and our future results. These statements are based on certain assumptions that we believe are reasonable. For 

information about some of the risks that could cause actual results to differ from these forward looking statements, please refer to the 

section entitled “Item 1. Business — Factors That May Affect Future Results and Accuracy of Forward-Looking Statements” in our 

Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2005 on Form 10-K on file with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission  

(our “Form 10-K Annual Report”).

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our 

Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report.

OVERVIEW OF OUR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 

We provide drilling related products and services and completion and workover related products and services to major and independent 

oil and natural gas companies, drilling contractors and other oilfield service companies. The majority of our revenues are generated from 

charging our customers day rates, based on the number of days our products and services are used. We also sell certain products used in 

the exploration for and production of oil and natural gas and receive revenues from our customers in connection with these sales. Our 

primary expenses are salaries for our personnel and the costs associated with expendable parts and supplies, research and development, 

repair and maintenance of equipment and costs of products sold as well as general operational costs. A detailed description of the 

products and services that we provide, the manner in which we market these products and services and the way in which we charge  

our customers for these products and services is contained under “Item 1. Business — Businesses” in our Form 10-K Annual Report.

Prices for oil and natural gas are subject to large fluctuations in response to relatively minor changes in the supply of and demand for oil 

and natural gas, market uncertainty and a variety of other factors. Any prolonged increase or decrease in oil and natural gas prices affects 

the levels of exploration, development and production activity as well as the entire health of the oil and natural gas industry. Demand for 

our drilling related products and services is directly affected by the level of exploration, development and production activity of, and the 

corresponding capital spending by, oil and natural gas companies. Demand for our completion and workover related products and services 

depends more on oil and natural gas production activity, which is less immediately affected by changes in oil and natural gas prices. 

DRILLING RELATED PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 

Revenue from our drilling related products and services segment constituted approximately 64% of our total 2005 consolidated revenue. 

Approximately 83% of our drilling segment revenue for 2005 was generated in the United States, including the Gulf of Mexico. The 

remaining 17% was generated in various international locations. 

In July 2001, exploration and development activity levels in the United States peaked and subsequently began to decline primarily as a 

result of lower natural gas prices. This decline continued through April 2002, at which point the United States drilling rig count levels 

reached a low of 738, which was comprised of 110 offshore rigs and 628 land rigs. As natural gas prices climbed and remained relatively 

strong, rig count levels began to recover in 2003 and continued through 2005. This increase, however, resulted entirely from an increase 

in land-based rigs. According to statistics published by Baker Hughes, the average number of rotary rigs operating in the United States 

was 1,032, 1,192 and 1,383 for 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. Of these figures, land rigs comprised 924, 1,095 and 1,290, respec-

tively, and offshore rigs comprised 108, 97 and 93, respectively, for the same periods. The offshore rig count did improve modestly in  

the fourth quarter of 2004 and into early 2005, but has since retreated to activity levels not experienced since mid-1993. Whether this 

trend will continue beyond 2005 is unclear at this time. We do believe that the overall outlook for domestic natural gas exploration and 

development activity remains positive, as natural gas production has yet to respond to the higher level of natural gas prices and higher rig 

counts. This factor should keep upward pressure on natural gas prices. 

2.0 >>  MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS. 

W-H Energy Services, Inc. 
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Despite the divergence between onshore and offshore activity levels, the recovery in exploration and development activity levels in the 

United States has positively impacted our revenue, cash flow and earnings generated in this market. 

Outside of the United States, the North Sea remains our largest drilling segment market. According to statistics published by Baker 

Hughes, the number of rotary rigs operating in the North Sea declined from an average of 67 in January 2002 to a low of 28 in  

February 2005, before recovering to an average of 46 in December 2005. We expect no significant change in activity levels in the  

North Sea in the near term. 

As the primary area of improvement in drilling activity in the United States has been onshore, the importance of improving our market 

share for land-based services became critical. In October 2002, in response to this developing trend, we made the strategic decision to 

enter the directional drilling business in North America. As a result of this decision and the growth in the United States land rig count, 

we have successfully leveraged our new directional drilling business to effect an increase in the utilization of our measurement-while-

drilling tools and down-hole drilling motor fleet. The increased utilization of our measurement-while-drilling tools and down-hole 

drilling motor fleet has helped to offset the sluggish nature of United States offshore activity. However, our logging-while-drilling 

revenues from this market have outperformed the rig count numbers as a result of performing more jobs with a higher content of our 

services, improving prices and an increase in our share of this market. 

A key challenge that our drilling related products and services segment faces is the demand by our customers for more efficient and 

technologically advanced services and tools. We have invested substantial time and capital into developing and commercializing technolo-

gies that are of value to our customers and that enable us to compete effectively with the major integrated oilfield service companies. 

During the third quarter of 2004, we began to market our PathMaker® 12 ¼" 3-Dimensional Rotary Steerable technology. We expect 

commercialization of the 3-Dimensional Rotary Steerable technology to improve the utilization of our logging-while-drilling, measure-

ment-while-drilling and directional drilling services, as our customers are increasingly requiring this type of technology as a prerequisite 

for a drilling project or contract. We are currently developing a PathMaker® 8 ½" 3-Dimensional Rotary Steerable tool and are offering 

this tool on a limited commercial basis during the first quarter of 2006. 

Introduced on a commercial basis in late 2004, our Array Wave Resistivity technology is the first of our next generation of logging-while-

drilling tools. We believe that our Array Wave Resistivity tools provide a more robust and accurate resistivity measurement. Tools and 

data analysis in this technology improve the precision and reliability of formation data obtained through the analysis of electromagnetic 

wave transmissions through the formation surrounding a well bore. Our Array Wave Resistivity tools are also designed to withstand high 

pressure (25,000 psi) and high temperature (350° F) well conditions. 

For a discussion of other technologies we have under development, please read “Item 1. Business — Research and Development: 

Technology Initiatives” in our Form 10-K Annual Report.

COMPLETION AND WORKOVER RELATED PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 

Our completion and workover related products and services segment provided approximately 36% of our total consolidated revenue for 

2005. Revenues provided by this segment are almost entirely derived from the United States and the Gulf of Mexico. While revenues 

from this segment are affected by the level of oil and natural gas prices, activity in this segment is only modestly affected by drilling 

activity (see the discussion under Drilling Related Products and Services above). As a result, our completion and workover segment has 

provided stability during prolonged downturns in drilling activity. 

We have increased our revenue capacity in this segment through capital spending in 2003, 2004 and 2005, which, when combined with 

our acquisitions and strategic land-based expansion efforts, has strengthened and further diversified the operations of the Company. 

Continued growth in this segment will be dependent upon, among other factors, industry activity levels, prices of oil and natural gas, our 

capital expenditure program and our ability to attract and retain qualified service personnel and field engineers required to operate the 

specialized equipment used in this business. 

GEOGRAPHIC EXPANSION 

We are currently working to establish a larger presence in the Rocky Mountain region of the United States, an expansion that will require 

an initial capital investment of approximately $30.0 million (see “Item 1. Business — Strategy” in our Form 10-K Annual Report). 

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 

In March 2004, we committed to the divestiture of our maintenance and safety related products and services segment. Accordingly, this 

segment has been included in our Selected Financial Data and our Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income 

for fiscal years ended on or before December 31, 2004 as discontinued operations. In April 2004, we completed the sale of Well Safe, 

Inc., one of the two companies that formerly comprised our maintenance and safety related products and services segment, for cash 

consideration of $28.0 million. Additionally, in December 2004, we sold Charles Holston, Inc., the remaining entity that formerly 

comprised this segment, for consideration of $2.0 million, consisting of $1.0 million in cash and a $1.0 million subordinated promissory 

note due December 31, 2009. We sold Well Safe and Charles Holston pursuant to customary stock purchase agreements in which we 

made customary representations and warranties, agreed to customary covenants and agreed to indemnify the buyers of these businesses 

for certain matters, subject to certain caps, limitations and deductibles. These sales resulted in a loss of $5.1 million for the year ended 

December 31, 2004. 
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RECENT DEVELOPMENT 

Adverse Weather Conditions. Our 2005 results of operations were negatively impacted by Hurricanes Katrina and Rita and the associ-

ated shut-in of drilling and production activity in the Gulf of Mexico and along the Gulf Coast. The adverse impact began during the 

third quarter of 2005 and has continued into the first quarter of 2006. 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2004 

Revenues. Revenues increased by $172.0 million, or approximately 37%, to $634.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from 

$462.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. This increase was primarily attributable to higher demand for certain of our 

products and services, combined with the benefit of increased revenue capacity from our capital expenditures. 

Revenues from our drilling related products and services increased by $106.4 million, or approximately 35%, to $409.2 million for the 

year ended December 31, 2005 from $302.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. We attribute the increase in revenues in this 

segment to: 

 > >  a 16% increase in the average number of rotary rigs operating in the United States, resulting in an increase in demand 

for our products and services; 

 > >  an increase in our Gulf of Mexico market share, resulting from higher utilization of our existing logging-while-drilling 

tools and commercialization of certain of our new technologies discussed earlier; and 

 > >  revenue capacity increases from our capital expenditure program. 

Revenues from our completion and workover related products and services increased by $65.6 million, or approximately 41%, to 

$225.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $159.6 million for the year December 31, 2004. We attribute the increase 

in revenues in this segment to: 

 > >  the benefits experienced from our onshore geographic expansion;  

 > >  higher utilization of our tools and services as a result of the overall increase in activity levels; and 

 > >  revenue capacity increases from our capital expenditure program. 

Cost of Revenues. Cost of revenues increased by $87.9 million, or approximately 33%, to $357.8 million for the year ended 

December 31, 2005 from $269.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. As a percentage of revenues, cost of revenues decreased 

to 56% for the year ended December 31, 2005 from 58% for the year ended December 31, 2004. The decrease in cost of revenues as a 

percentage of revenues was primarily due to improved pricing, improved utilization and a change in our revenue mix. 

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by $21.1 million, or approximately 

24%, to $108.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $87.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase 

was primarily attributable to increased personnel costs related to expansion efforts within all of our business lines. As a percentage of 

revenues, selling, general and administrative expenses decreased to 17% for the year ended December 31, 2005 from 19% for the year 

ended December 31, 2004. 

Warehouse Fire Related Costs. On April 17, 2005, a Houston warehouse facility operated by one of our subsidiaries was destroyed by a 

fire. For the year ended December 31, 2005, we reported $3.7 million in costs associated with this fire, net of approximately $0.8 million 

in anticipated insurance reimbursements. This amount has been reflected in our Selected Financial Data and our Consolidated State-

ments of Operations and Comprehensive Income under the caption “Warehouse fire related costs” and in Note 13 “Operating Segments” 

as a reduction to operating income for the drilling segment for the year ended December 31, 2005. 

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses increased by $0.8 million, or approximately 5%, to 

$16.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $15.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. This increase was the 

result of increased research and development spending on our PathFinder Energy Services technologies, including our PathMaker® 8 ½" 

3-Dimensional Rotary Steerable tool, our Slim Density Neutron Stand-off Caliper tool and other research and development initiatives. 

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization increased by $10.9 million, or approximately 24%, to $56.6 million for 

the year ended December 31, 2005 from $45.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. This increase was largely the result of a 

larger depreciable asset base resulting from our capital expenditures. 

Interest and Other Expense. Interest and other expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $10.8 million, a decrease of 

$0.2 million, or approximately 2%, from $11.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. This decrease was primarily due to our 

write-off, during the second quarter of 2004, of $3.1 million in deferred financing costs associated with the retirement of our previous 

credit facility during June of 2004 and a larger amount of debt in 2004, partially offset by higher interest costs associated with rising 

interest rates and our recognition of approximately $0.5 million in net losses in 2005 as increases to interest expense resulting from net 

payments to the swap counterparties (discussed more fully under “Capital Resources”). 
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Provision for income taxes. Our effective income tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2005 was 39.0% as compared to 38.5% for 

the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase in the 2005 effective rate compared to 2004 was due to several factors including, but 

not limited to, changes in valuation allowances in various jurisdictions, ongoing and settled audits in foreign jurisdictions, and fluctua-

tions in income across taxing jurisdictions with different tax rates. 

Year Ended December 31, 2004 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2003 

Revenues. Revenues increased by $95.2 million, or approximately 26%, to $462.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from 

$367.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. This increase was attributable to increases in capacity driven by capital expenditures, 

higher demand for certain of our products and services, particularly drilling/completion fluids, land-based measurement-while-drilling 

and directional drilling services, cased-hole wireline and coiled tubing, as well as the revenue contributions of Hydracoil, Inc., Dutch, 

Inc. and Continental Directional Corp., which were acquired in the fourth quarter 2003. 

Revenues from our drilling related products and services increased by $60.7 million, or approximately 25%, to $302.8 million for the 

year ended December 31, 2004 from $242.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. This increase was primarily attributable  

to increases in capacity driven by capital expenditures, the growth of our North American directional drilling business, enhanced by the 

increase in land-based drilling activity levels in the United States, increased demand for our drilling fluids and rental tool products and 

the impact of the acquisitions that we consummated during the fourth quarter of 2003. 

Revenues from our completion and workover related products and services increased by $34.5 million, or approximately 28%, to  

$159.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $125.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. This increase was the 

result of increases in capacity driven by capital expenditures, higher utilization of our coiled tubing and cased-hole wireline fleet, demand 

for our completion fluids and the impact of the acquisitions that we consummated during the fourth quarter of 2003. 

Cost of Revenues. Cost of revenues increased by $60.8 million, or approximately 29%, to $269.9 million for the year ended December 

31, 2004 from $209.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. As a percentage of revenues, cost of revenues increased to 58% for 

the year ended December 31, 2004 from 57% for the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase in cost of revenues as a percentage of 

revenues was due to increased insurance costs and our revenue mix. In particular, our revenue mix was affected by sales increases in our 

lower margin fluids products and land-based directional drilling services. 

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by $16.7 million, or approximately 

23%, to $87.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $71.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase 

was primarily attributable to the operating expenses associated with the businesses we acquired in the fourth quarter of 2003 and during 

2004, as well as increased personnel costs related to expansion efforts within our directional drilling business and corporate compliance 

initiatives as mandated by law. As a percentage of revenues, selling, general and administrative expenses remained flat at 19% for the year 

ended December 31, 2004 relative to the year ended December 31, 2003. 

Research and Development Expense. Research and development expenses increased by $4.3 million, or approximately 38%, to  

$15.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $11.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. This increase was  

the result of increased research and development spending on our PathFinder Energy Services technologies, including our PathMaker®  

12 ¼" 3-Dimensional Rotary Steerable tool, our Array Wave Resistivity tool and other research and development initiatives. 

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization increased by $9.7 million, or approximately 27%, to $45.7 million for 

the year ended December 31, 2004 from $36.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. This increase was the result of deprecia-

tion associated with our continued capital expenditures, as well as additional depreciation and amortization due to our acquisitions. 

Interest and Other Expense. Interest and other expense for the year ended December 31, 2004 was $11.0 million, an increase of  

$2.8 million, or approximately 34%, from $8.2 million for the year December 31, 2003. This increase was primarily due to the  

$3.1 million write-off of non-cash financing costs related to our previous credit facility, offset by a reduction in our effective interest  

rate during the second half of 2004. 

Provision for income taxes. Our effective income tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 was 38.5%. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES 

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements requires that we make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts 

of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. We evaluate our estimates on an  

on-going basis, based on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances. 

The most significant areas involving management judgment and estimates are described below. Actual results may differ from these 

estimates under different assumptions or conditions. 

Allowance for doubtful accounts 

We extend credit to customers and other parties in the normal course of business. We regularly review outstanding receivables and 

provide for estimated losses through an allowance for doubtful accounts. In evaluating the level of established reserves, we make judg-

ments regarding our customers’ ability to make required payments, economic events and other factors. As the financial condition of these 
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parties change, circumstances develop or additional information becomes available, adjustments to the allowance for doubtful accounts 

may be required. In the event we were to determine that a customer may not be able to make required payments, we would increase the 

allowance through a charge to income in the period in which that determination is made. See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial  

Statements for further discussion. 

Income taxes 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the difference between the book basis and tax basis of our net assets. In providing  

for deferred taxes, we consider current tax regulations, estimates of future taxable income and available tax planning strategies. We believe 

that our earnings during the periods when the temporary differences become deductible will be sufficient to realize the related future 

income tax benefits. In certain cases where projected results indicate that realization is not likely, we have established a valuation  

allowance to reduce deferred tax assets to estimated realizable value. 

In assessing the need for a valuation allowance, we estimate future taxable income, considering the feasibility of ongoing tax planning 

strategies and the realizability of tax loss carry-forwards. Valuation allowances related to deferred tax assets can be impacted by changes to 

tax laws, changes to statutory tax rates and future taxable income levels. In the event we were to determine that we would not be able to 

realize all or a portion of our deferred tax assets in the future, we would reduce such amounts through a charge to income in the period  

in which that determination is made. Conversely, if we were to determine that we would be able to realize our deferred tax assets in the 

future in excess of the net carrying amounts, we would decrease the recorded valuation allowance through an increase to income in the 

period in which that determination is made. See Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion. 

In addition, the calculation of our tax liabilities involves dealing with uncertainties in the application of complex tax regulations. We 

recognize liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues in the U.S. and other tax jurisdictions based on our estimate of whether, and the extent 

to which, additional taxes will be due. If we ultimately determine that payment of these amounts is unnecessary, we reverse the liability 

and recognize a tax benefit during the period in which we determine that the liability is no longer necessary. We record an additional 

charge in our provision for taxes in the period in which we determine that the recorded tax liability is less than we expect the ultimate 

assessment to be. 

Insurance reserves 

We are subject to legal proceedings and claims from time to time, the outcomes of which are subject to significant uncertainty. Although 

we maintain policies of insurance that cover claims asserted against our company, many of our policies provide for large deductibles. In 

addition, our insurance policies may not cover certain types of claims. We determine whether to disclose and accrue for loss contingencies 

based on the coverages we maintain and our assessment of whether the risk of loss is remote, reasonably possible, or probable. While we 

make these judgments with the advice of legal counsel and our insurers, these judgments are inherently subjective. As claims develop and 

additional information becomes available, adjustments to loss reserves may be required. 

Impairment of long-lived assets 

Our long-lived assets are carried on our financial statements based on their cost less accumulated depreciation. However, accounting 

standards require us to write down assets or groups of assets if they become impaired. If significant events or changes in circumstances 

indicate that the carrying value of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable, we perform a test of recoverability by comparing the 

carrying value of the asset or asset group to its undiscounted expected future cash flows. If cash flows cannot be separately and indepen-

dently identified for a single asset, we will determine whether an impairment has occurred for the group of assets for which we can 

identify the projected cash flows. If the carrying values are in excess of undiscounted expected future cash flows, we measure any 

impairment by comparing the fair value of the asset or asset group to its carrying value. Fair value is typically determined by an internally 

developed discounted projected cash flow analysis of the asset or asset group. If the fair value of an asset or asset group is determined to 

be less than the carrying amount of the asset or asset group, an impairment in the amount of the difference is recorded in the period that 

the impairment indicator occurs. 

Typical indicators that an asset may be impaired include:  

 > > Significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results; 

 > > Significant changes in the manner of our use of the assets or the strategy for our overall business; 

 > > Significant negative industry or economic trends;  

 > > Significant decline in our stock price for a sustained period; and 

 > > Market capitalization relative to net book value.  

If any of these or other indicators occur, we review the asset to determine whether there has been an impairment. Several of these 

indicators are beyond our control, and we cannot predict with any certainty whether or not they will occur. In addition, determination of 

future cash flows requires us to make judgments and estimates based upon the most recent market and operating data for the applicable 

asset at the time the estimate is made, and such estimates can change based on market conditions, technological advances in the industry 

or changes in regulations governing the industry. 
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Goodwill and intangible assets 

Goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are not amortized, but are subject to annual impairment testing or more 

frequently if indicators arise. The identification and measurement of goodwill impairment involves the estimation of the fair value of 

reporting units. The estimates of fair value of reporting units are based on the best information available as of the date of the assessment, 

which primarily incorporate management assumptions about expected future cash flows but are also based on other valuation techniques. 

Future cash flows can be affected by changes in industry or market conditions or the rate and extent to which anticipated synergies or 

cost savings are realized with newly acquired entities. Although no goodwill impairment has been recorded to date, there can be no 

assurances that future goodwill impairments will not occur. See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion. 

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS 123R, “Share-Based Payment,” a revision of SFAS 123.  

In March 2005, the SEC issued Staff Bulletin No. 107 regarding its interpretation of SFAS 123R. Under SFAS 123R and SAB 107,  

we must expense the grant-date fair value of stock options and other equity-based compensation issued to employees. We adopted SFAS 

123R as of January 1, 2006 using the modified prospective method in which compensation cost is recognized based (1) on the require-

ments of SFAS 123R for all share-based payments granted after January 1, 2006 and (2) on the requirements of SFAS 123 for all awards 

granted to employees prior to January 1, 2006 that remain unvested on January 1, 2006. For the year ending December 31, 2006,  

we estimate that the cost relating to this pronouncement for unvested share-based payments granted prior to January 1, 2006 will be 

approximately $3.1 million, or $0.06 per share. Our Compensation Committee may award additional stock options during 2006  

which would increase the amount of this expense. 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

Our primary uses for cash are working capital, capital expenditures, research and development expenditures, acquisitions, business 

expansions and principal and interest payments on indebtedness. Our primary sources of liquidity are cash reserves, cash generated by 

operations and amounts available to be drawn under our revolving credit facility. To the extent our cash requirements exceed our sources 

of liquidity, we will be required to fund our cash requirements through other means, such as through debt and equity financing activities 

or we will be required to curtail our expenditures. 

Cash flow 

Working capital was $160.1 million as of December 31, 2005 and $121.6 million as of December 31, 2004. Net cash provided by 

operating activities was $72.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 and $41.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. 

The increase in working capital and cash flow from operating activities was principally attributable to higher operating levels across our 

business segments. 

Net cash used in investing activities was $68.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 and $70.7 million for the year ended 

December 31, 2004. Net cash used in investing activities was principally the result of capital expenditures, offset by lost-in-hole proceeds 

which represent funds we receive from a customer when one of our tools is involuntarily damaged or lost down-hole. 

Net cash used in financing activities was $3.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 and net cash provided by financing 

activities was $3.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. Changes in net cash related to financing activities were primarily the 

result of borrowings and repayments under our credit facility, which is described below, and proceeds from the exercise of stock options. 

For the year ended December 31, 2005, we made capital expenditures of $89.0 million, primarily for rental tool inventory, logging-

while-drilling and measurement-while-drilling tools, wireline equipment and coil tubing units, including expenditures for the replacement 

of equipment lost-in-hole. In addition, we incurred $16.3 million in research and development expenditures for the year ended  

December 31, 2005. 

Acquisitions 

During 2005, we consummated one acquisition in the completion and workover segment for total consideration of approximately  

$3.5 million, including cash of approximately $2.5 million and 31,422 shares of our common stock. See Note 3 to the Consolidated 

Financial Statements for additional information. 

Capital resources 

We maintain a revolving credit facility with certain lenders to provide for our cash, liquidity and other borrowing needs. Our credit 

facility provides for aggregate borrowings of up to $375.0 million and matures on May 5, 2010. As of December 31, 2005, we had an 

outstanding loan balance of $165.0 million and approximately $7.9 million in letters of credit issued under our credit facility, resulting in 

an available borrowing capacity on such date of approximately $202.1 million. 

Amounts borrowed under our credit facility bear interest, at our election, at either a variable rate equal to LIBOR, plus a margin ranging 

from 1.0% to 2.0% depending upon our leverage ratio, or an alternate base rate equal to the higher of (1) the prime rate or (2) the 

federal funds rate plus 0.5%, plus a margin ranging from zero to 1.0% depending upon our leverage ratio. As of December 31, 2005,  

we had elected to pay interest on our outstanding borrowings at LIBOR plus the then applicable margin of 1.25%. 
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Our credit facility is secured by a lien on substantially all of our property and assets, a pledge of all of the capital stock of our domestic 

subsidiaries and a pledge of not greater than 65% of the capital stock of each of our top tier foreign subsidiaries. In addition, our credit 

facility is guaranteed by all of our domestic subsidiaries. Our credit facility requires, among other things, that we maintain certain 

financial ratios, including a leverage ratio and an interest coverage ratio, and a specified net worth. Our credit facility limits the amount 

of capital expenditures we may make, the amount of debt we may incur outside of the credit facility, the amount of future investments 

we may make, our ability to pay dividends and our ability to engage in certain business combination transactions. 

Our credit facility contains customary events of default, including payment defaults, breaches of representations and warranties,  

covenant defaults, cross-defaults to certain other indebtedness agreements in excess of specified amounts, certain events of bankruptcy 

and insolvency, judgments in excess of specified amounts, ERISA defaults, certain failures of guaranty or security documents supporting 

our credit facility to be in full force and effect and a change of control. 

We entered into our credit facility in June 2004. We entered into a first amendment to our credit facility in May 2005 and a second 

amendment in February 2006. Financing costs associated with our original credit facility of approximately $1.6 million and financing 

costs associated with the first amendment of approximately $1.0 million will be ratably amortized to interest expense over the five year 

term of the credit facility. As a result of the approximate $160.0 million repayment of our previous credit facility in June 2004, we wrote 

off approximately $3.1 million in non-cash financing costs to interest expense during the second quarter of 2004. This amount repre-

sented financing costs that previously had been deferred. 

The descriptions of our credit facility, as amended by the first amendment and second amendment, are qualified in their entirety by 

reference to the original credit facility which is filed as Exhibit 10.8 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended  

June 30, 2004, the first amendment which is filed as Exhibit 10.8(a) to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 

March 31, 2005 and the second amendment which is filed as Exhibit 10.8(b) to our Form 10-K Annual Report. 

On May 18, 2005, we entered into interest rate swap agreements with a total notional amount of $150 million related to our credit 

facility. Under these agreements, we receive payments from the swap counterparties based on a floating rate equal to three-month  

LIBOR plus the applicable spread under our credit facility, and we make payments to such counterparties based on a fixed interest  

rate of 4.24% per annum plus the applicable spread under our credit facility. 

Contractual obligations 

The following table aggregates information about our contractual cash obligations (in thousands) as of December 31, 2005: 

PAYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD

          MORE THAN 
CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS  TOTAL  0-1 YEAR  2-3 YEARS  4-5 YEARS  5 YEARS

Debt $ 165,000 $ — $ — $ 165,000 $ —

Operating leases  23,462  6,543  9,543  4,223  3,153
Purchase obligations (1)  56,394  55,194  1,200  —  —

Total $ 244,856 $ 61,737 $ 10,743 $ 169,223 $ 3,153

(1) Purchase obligations represent orders to purchase various equipment and inventory items that have not yet been delivered. 

Future capital requirements 

We anticipate that acquisitions of complementary companies, assets and product lines will continue to play an important role in our 

business strategy. While there are currently no unannounced agreements or ongoing negotiations for the acquisition of any material 

businesses or assets, such transactions can be effected quickly and may occur at any time. Likewise, we will continue to need to make 

capital expenditures for tools and equipment and to make research and development expenditures to maintain and improve the quality  

of our products and services. We currently estimate that we will make capital expenditures of approximately $150 million in 2006 and 

will make research and development expenditures of approximately $18 million in 2006. 

We believe that our internally generated cash flow, combined with access to our credit facility will be sufficient to meet the liquidity 

requirements necessary to fund our operating, capital expenditure, research and development and debt service requirements for at least 

the next 12 months. However, our ability to maintain our credit facility and the sufficiency of our internally generated cash flow can be 

impacted by economic conditions outside of our control. 

The continuation of our acquisition strategy will require substantial capital. We currently intend to finance future acquisitions through 

issuances of our equity or debt securities and through borrowings under our credit facility. Using debt to complete acquisitions could 

substantially limit our operational and financial flexibility and using stock could dilute the ownership interests of our existing sharehold-

ers. The extent to which we will be able or are willing to use our common stock to make acquisitions will depend on its market value 

from time to time and the willingness of potential sellers to accept it as full or partial payment. If we are unable to obtain additional 

capital on acceptable terms, we may be unable to grow through acquisitions. 

Off balance sheet arrangements 

With the exception of operating leases on real property and automobile leases discussed in Note 8 of our consolidated financial state-

ments, we have no off-balance sheet debt or other off-balance sheet financing arrangements. 
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We are exposed to market risks. Market risk is the potential loss arising from adverse changes in market prices and rates. Our market risk 

could arise from changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. We have utilized, and may continue to utilize, derivative 

and other financial instruments to manage these market risks. We have not entered into derivative or other financial instruments for 

trading or speculative purposes. 

Interest Rate Risk. We are subject to market risk exposure related to changes in interest rates. To manage this risk, we have entered into 

interest rate swap agreements with a total notional amount of $150.0 million related to our credit facility. Under these agreements, we 

receive interest at a floating rate equal to three-month LIBOR plus the applicable spread under our credit facility and pay interest at a 

fixed rate of 4.24% plus the applicable spread under our credit facility. Assuming our current level of borrowings and considering the 

effect of the interest rate swap agreements, a 100 basis point increase in the interest rate we pay under our credit facility would have 

increased our interest expense by approximately $0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. 

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk. Our earnings and financial position are affected by foreign exchange rate fluctuations. We currently  

do not hedge against foreign currency translation risks and we believe that foreign currency exchange risk is unlikely to be significant  

to our operations. 

Stock Price Volatility. Our ability to raise capital at a reasonable cost of capital is, in part, affected by the market price of our common 

stock. The market price of our common stock may be influenced by many factors including variations in our earnings, variations in oil 

and natural gas prices, the level of exploration, development and production activity of, and the corresponding capital spending by, our 

customers, investor perceptions of us and other oilfield service companies and the liquidity of the market for our common stock. 

3.0 >>  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES 
ABOUT MARKET RISK 

W-H Energy Services, Inc. 
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TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS OF W-H ENERGY SERVICES, INC. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of W-H Energy Services, Inc. (a Texas corporation) and subsidiaries as  

of December 31, 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and cash 

flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to 

express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those 

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 

material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of  

W-H Energy Services, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year 

then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the 

effectiveness of W-H Energy Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005,  

based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 

Treadway Commission (COSO) and our report dated March 3, 2006, expressed an unqualified opinion that W-H Energy Services, Inc. 

and subsidiaries maintained effective internal control over financial reporting and on management’s assessment thereof. 

Grant Thornton LLP

Houston, Texas 

March 3, 2006 

4.1 >>  REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED 
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

W-H Energy Services, Inc. 
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TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS OF W-H ENERGY SERVICES, INC. 

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying management’s report on internal control over financial 

reporting, that W-H Energy Services, Inc. (a Texas corporation) and subsidiaries maintained effective internal control over financial 

reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of 

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The management of W-H Energy Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries is 

responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control 

over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of 

the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those 

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over 

financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over 

financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, 

and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable 

basis for our opinions. 

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the mainte-

nance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;  

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance  

with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 

detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections  

of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in 

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion, management’s assessment that W-H Energy Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries maintained effective internal control over 

financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in Internal Control — 

Integrated Framework issued by COSO. Also in our opinion, W-H Energy Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries maintained, in all material 

respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control — 

Integrated Framework issued by COSO. 

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the balance 

sheet of W-H Energy Services, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005, and the related statements of operations and comprehensive 

income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows the year then ended, and our report dated March 3, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion 

on those consolidated financial statements. 

Grant Thornton LLP

Houston, Texas 

March 3, 2006 

4.2 >>  REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED 
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 
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TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS OF W-H ENERGY SERVICES, INC. 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2004 and the related consolidated statements of 

operations and comprehensive income, of shareholders’ equity and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of W-H Energy Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the Company) at December 31, 2004 and the results of their operations and 

their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2004 in conformity with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsi-

bility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance 

with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of 

financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, 

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement 

presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Houston, Texas 

March 11, 2005 

4.3 >>  REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED 
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

W-H Energy Services, Inc. 
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(In thousands, except share and per share amounts) 

DECEMBER 31,  2005  2004

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,914 $ 10,448

Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $5,243 and $3,890, respectively  152,348  111,728

Inventories  55,142  48,317

Deferred income taxes  5,625  5,601
Prepaid expenses and other  11,149  9,965

  Total current assets  234,178  186,059

Property and equipment, net  257,286  235,317

Goodwill and other intangibles, net  119,502  117,801
Other assets, net  11,809  9,434

   Total assets $ 622,775 $ 548,611

LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities $ 43,401 $ 34,926
Accounts payable  30,692  29,572

  Total current liabilities  74,093  64,498

Long-term debt  165,000  180,805

Deferred income taxes  40,214  30,849

Other long-term obligations  4,518  3,864

Commitments and contingencies

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

   Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized, 

none issued and outstanding  —  —

   Common stock, $0.0001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 

28,826,087 and 27,803,130 shares issued and outstanding, respectively  3  3

  Additional paid-in capital  235,392  214,846

  Deferred stock compensation  (280)  (806)

  Other comprehensive income  7,852  7,522
  Retained earnings  95,983  47,030

   Total shareholders’ equity  338,950  268,595

   Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 622,775 $ 548,611 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

W-H Energy Services, Inc. 

5.0 >>  CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
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W-H Energy Services, Inc. 

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2005  2004  2003

REVENUES $ 634,361 $ 462,428 $ 367,183

COSTS AND EXPENSES

 Cost of revenues  357,787  269,897  209,118

 Selling, general and administrative  108,946  87,772  71,078

 Warehouse fire related costs  3,690  —  —

 Research and development expenses  16,275  15,474  11,241
 Depreciation and amortization  56,639  45,665  36,032

  Total costs and expenses  543,337  418,808  327,469

  Operating income  91,024  43,620  39,714

OTHER (INCOME) EXPENSE

 Interest expense, net  10,498  11,117  8,092
 Other (income) expense, net  279  (94)  76

  Income before income taxes  80,247  32,597  31,546
 Provision for income taxes  31,294  12,548  12,145

  Income from continuing operations  48,953  20,049  19,401
  Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax  —  (2,126)  (140)

  Net income $ 48,953 $ 17,923 $ 19,261

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

 Net income $ 48,953 $ 17,923 $ 19,261

 Interest rate swap valuations  2,030  —  —
 Foreign currency translation adjustment  (1,700)  855  3,246

 Comprehensive income $ 49,283 $ 18,778 $ 22,507

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

 Basic

  From continuing operations $ 1.74 $ 0.73 $ 0.71
  From discontinued operations  —  (0.08)  —

   Total $ 1.74 $ 0.65 $ 0.71

 Diluted      

  From continuing operations $ 1.68 $ 0.71 $ 0.69
  From discontinued operations  —  (0.07)  —

   Total $ 1.68 $ 0.64 $ 0.69

NUMBER OF SHARES USED IN CALCULATION 
OF EARNINGS PER SHARE

 Basic  28,135,263  27,527,881  27,189,530
 Diluted  29,085,582  28,201,222  27,942,202

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

6.0 >>  CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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(In thousands)

  COMMON STOCK ADDITIONAL  OTHER
  PAR PAID-IN DEFERRED STOCK COMPREHENSIVE RETAINED
 SHARES VALUE CAPITAL COMPENSATION INCOME EARNINGS TOTAL

Balance, December 31, 2002 27,016 $ 3 $ 208,646 $ (387) $ 3,421 $ 9,846 $ 221,529

Amortization of deferred 

 stock compensation —  —  —  387  —  —  387

Foreign currency 

 translation adjustment —  —  —  —  3,246  —  3,246

Issuance of common stock 

 — warrant conversion 184  —  —  —  —  —  —

Issuance of common stock 

 — severance agreement 3  —  61  —  —  —  61

Issuance of common stock 

 — stock option exercises 88  —  512  —  —  —  512

Issuance of common stock 

 — acquisitions 110  —  1,518  —  —  —  1,518

Tax benefit from employee 

 stock option plan —  —  946  —  —  —  946
Net income —  —  —  —  —  19,261  19,261

Balance, December 31, 2003 27,401  3  211,683  —  6,667  29,107  247,460

Deferred stock compensation 75  —  1,318  (1,318)  —  —  —

Amortization of deferred 

 stock compensation —  —  —  512  —  —  512

Foreign currency 

 translation adjustment —  —  —  —  855  —  855

Issuance of common stock 

 — stock option exercises 327  —  1,553  —  —  —  1,553

Tax benefit from employee 

 stock option plan —  —  292  —  —  —  292
Net income —  —  —  —  —  17,923  17,923

Balance, December 31, 2004 27,803  3  214,846  (806)  7,522  47,030  268,595

Amortization of deferred 

 stock compensation —  —  —  526  —  —  526

Foreign currency 

 translation adjustment —  —  —  —  (1,700)  —  (1,700)

Interest rate swap valuations, 

 net of tax of $1,092 —  —  —  —  2,030  —  2,030

Issuance of common stock 

 — stock option exercises 992  —  12,991  —  —  —  12,991

Issuance of common stock 

 — acquisitions 31  —  882        882

Tax benefit from employee 

 stock option plan —  —  6,673  —  —  —  6,673
Net income —  —  —  —  —  48,953  48,953

Balance, December 31, 2005 28,826 $ 3 $ 235,392 $ (280) $ 7,852 $ 95,983 $ 338,950 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

7.0 >>  CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF  
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
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W-H Energy Services, Inc. 

(In thousands)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2005  2004  2003

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

 Net income $ 48,953 $ 17,923 $ 19,261

  ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE NET INCOME TO CASH 
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

 Depreciation and amortization  56,639  45,665  36,032

 Provision for doubtful accounts  2,103  1,889  66

 Gain on the sale of assets  (12,158)  (8,715)  (7,660)

 Deferred tax provision  8,045  6,579  6,122

 Amortization of deferred stock compensation  526  512  387

 Write-off of deferred financing costs  —  3,123  —

 Amortization of deferred financing costs  488  842  1,134

 Tax benefit from employee stock option plan  6,673  292  946

  CHANGE IN OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES, EXCLUDING 
EFFECTS OF ACQUISITIONS AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

   Accounts receivable, net  (42,230)  (32,739)  (10,364)

   Inventories  (6,572)  (10,950)  47

   Prepaid expenses and other  (385)  (4,038)  (3,564)

   Other assets, net  576  (2,130)  (973)
   Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  10,028  22,987  (5,826)

    Net cash provided by operating activities  72,686  41,240  35,608

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

  Acquisition of businesses, net of cash 

   acquired of $ — , $272 and $1,205  (2,496)  (4,066)  (11,903)

  Additions to property and equipment  (88,967)  (82,407)  (65,420)
  Proceeds from sale of property and equipment  22,934  15,778  12,418

    Net cash used in investing activities  (68,529)  (70,695)  (64,905)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

 Proceeds from the issuance of debt  61,783  241,361  135,689

 Payments on debt  (77,588)  (238,281)  (107,017)

 Debt issuance costs  (1,089)  (1,572)  (1,939)
 Proceeds from exercise of stock options  12,991  1,553  512

    Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities  (3,903)  3,061  27,245

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash  (788)  (177)  2,660

Cash flow of discontinued operations (revised — Note 1)

 Operating cash flows  —  (1,533)  5,204
 Investing cash flows  —  26,674  (3,032)

  Total  —  25,141  2,172

Net Increase (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (534)  (1,430)  2,780
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period  10,448  11,878  9,098

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 9,914 $ 10,448 $ 11,878

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

 Interest paid during the period $ 9,366 $ 7,120 $ 6,954

 Income taxes paid during the period $ 15,647 $ 8,411 $ 4,171

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

8.0 >> CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
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NOTE 1 >> BUSINESS ORGANIZATION 

Description of Company 

W-H Energy Services, Inc., a Texas corporation, and its subsidiaries (collectively, “W-H”) is a diversified oilfield service company that 

provides products and services used in connection with the drilling and completion of oil and natural gas wells and the production of  

oil and natural gas there from. W-H has the following primary lines of business: (i) drilling related products and services, which include 

logging-while-drilling, measurement-while-drilling, directional drilling, down-hole drilling motors, rental tools and drilling fluids; and  

(ii) completion and workover related products and services, which include cased-hole wireline logging, perforating, tubing conveyed 

perforating and associated rental equipment, polymers and specialty chemicals, rental tools and coiled tubing. 

W-H’s business depends in large part on the conditions in the oil and natural gas industry and specifically on the amount of capital 

spending by its customers. Any prolonged increase or decrease in oil and natural gas prices affects the levels of exploration, development 

and production activity, as well as the entire health of the oil and natural gas industry. Changes in prices could have a material effect on  

W-H’s results of operations and financial condition, particularly with respect to its drilling related products and services segment. Demand 

for W-H’s drilling related products and services is directly affected by the level of exploration, development and production activity of, and 

the corresponding capital spending by, oil and natural gas companies. Demand for W-H’s completion and workover related products and 

services depends more on oil and natural gas production activity, which is less immediately affected by changes in oil and natural gas prices. 

Prices for oil and natural gas are subject to large fluctuations in response to relatively minor changes in the supply of and demand for oil 

and natural gas, market uncertainty and a variety of other factors that are beyond W-H’s control. Any prolonged reduction in oil and 

natural gas prices may depress the level of exploration, development and production activity. Lower levels of activity result in a corresponding 

decline in the demand for W-H’s drilling related products and services which could have a material adverse effect on its revenues and 

profitability. Other risk factors include, but are not limited to, risks associated with (1) W-H’s ability to develop and commercialize competitive 

tools and technologies, (2) explosions, spills, fires and other accidents, (3) the competitive nature of W-H’s business, (4) the cost and 

availability of insurance, (5) the ability to attract and retain skilled employees and managers and (6) weather conditions in offshore markets. 

Discontinued Operations 

In March 2004, W-H committed to the divestiture of its maintenance and safety related products and services segment. Accordingly,  

this segment has been included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income as discontinued operations.  

In April 2004, W-H completed the sale of Well Safe, Inc., one of the two companies that formerly comprised the maintenance and safety 

related products and services segment, for cash consideration of $28.0 million. In December 2004, W-H sold Charles Holston, Inc., the 

rem�  

$1.0 million subordinated promissory note due December 31, 2009. These sales resulted in a loss of $5.1 million for the year ended 

December 31, 2004. This loss is included as a component of discontinued operations in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of 

Operations and Comprehensive Income. Summary financial results for this segment are as follows: 

    2004  2003

Revenues   $ 16,007 $ 31,166

Loss before taxes   $ (3,792) $ (228)
Tax benefit    (1,666)  (88)

Net loss   $ (2,126) $ (140)

W-H sold Well Safe and Charles Holston pursuant to customary stock purchase agreements in which it made customary representations 

and warranties, agreed to customary covenants and agreed to indemnify the buyers of these businesses for certain matters, subject to certain 

caps, limitations and deductibles. 

In 2005, W-H has revised the 2004 and 2003 statement of cash flows to separately present the operating and investing portions of the cash 

flows attributable to its discontinued operations, which in prior periods were reported on a combined basis as a single amount. 

9.0 >> NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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NOTE 2 >> SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Consolidation and Presentation 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of W-H and its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany 

balances and transactions have been eliminated. Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

W-H considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 

Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable have a concentration of credit risk in the oil and natural gas industry. W-H performs continuing credit evaluations of 

its customers and generally does not require collateral. 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

W-H extends credit to customers and other parties in the normal course of business. W-H regularly reviews outstanding receivables and 

provides for estimated losses through an allowance for doubtful accounts. In evaluating the level of established reserves, W-H makes 

judgments regarding its customers’ ability to make required payments, economic events and other factors. As the financial condition of 

these parties change, circumstances develop or additional information becomes available, adjustments to the allowance for doubtful 

accounts may be required. In the event W-H was to determine that a customer may not be able to make required payments, W-H would 

increase the allowance through a charge to income in the period in which that determination is made. 

Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, determined on a first-in, first-out basis. Inventories consist primarily of equipment, 

parts, raw materials and supplies. W-H assesses the realizability of its inventories based upon specific usage and future utility. A charge to 

results of operations is taken when factors that would result in a need for a reduction in the valuation, such as excess or obsolete inven-

tory, are noted. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Expenditures for major additions and improvements are capitalized while minor replace-

ments, maintenance and repairs, which do not improve or extend the life of such assets, are charged to operations as the services are 

provided. Disposals are removed at cost, less accumulated depreciation, and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in the accompanying 

consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income. Proceeds from customers for the cost of oilfield rental equipment that 

is involuntarily damaged or lost down-hole are reflected as revenues, with the resulting carrying value of the related equipment charged to 

cost of revenues. 

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets. Leasehold improvements 

are amortized over the shorter of their useful lives or the term of the lease. The useful lives of the major classes of property and equipment 

are as follows: 

 LIFE IN YEARS

Rental equipment 2-10

Machinery and equipment 5-10

Automobiles and trucks 2-10

Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 3-7
Buildings and leasehold improvements 5-40 

Realization of Long-Lived Assets

W-H evaluates the recoverability of assets not held for sale by measuring the carrying amount of the assets against the estimated undis-

counted future cash flows associated with them. If such evaluations indicate that the future undiscounted cash flows of certain long-lived 

assets are not sufficient to recover the carrying value of such assets, the assets are adjusted to their fair values. Based on these evaluations, 

there were no adjustments to the carrying value of long-lived assets in 2005, 2004 or 2003. 

Goodwill and Other Intangibles 

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate price paid by W-H in acquisitions over the fair market value of the tangible and identifi-

able intangible net assets acquired. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other 

Intangible Assets,” separable intangible assets that are not deemed to have indefinite lives will be amortized over their useful lives. 

Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized but are reviewed annually (or more  

frequently if indicators arise) for impairment. According to SFAS No. 142, companies are required to identify their reporting units and 

determine the aggregate carrying values and fair values of all such reporting units. If the carrying value of a reporting unit exceeds its 

relative fair value, SFAS No. 142 requires that a second impairment test be performed. This second step requires the comparison of the 

implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill to its related carrying value, both of which must be measured by the company at the 

same point in time each year. W-H performed the required assessments in accordance with SFAS No. 142 for the years ended  

December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, which resulted in W-H recording no goodwill impairment expense. 
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Debt Issue Costs 

Other assets includes debt issue costs related to W-H’s revolving credit facility. W-H amortizes these costs as interest expense over the 

scheduled maturity period of the debt. As a result of the repayment of its prior credit facility in June 2004, W-H expensed approximately 

$3.1 million of the unamortized debt financing costs as interest expense during the year ended December 31, 2004. Financing costs 

associated with W-H’s current credit facility, as amended, totaled approximately $2.6 million, and are amortized ratably to interest 

expense over the remaining term of the credit facility. See Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion. 

Revenue Recognition 

W-H provides rental equipment and services to its customers on a day/hourly rate basis and recognizes the related revenue on a per-day/

hourly basis as the work progresses. W-H also sells products to customers and recognizes the related revenue as items are shipped from its 

facilities. Proceeds from customers for the cost of oilfield rental equipment that is involuntarily damaged or lost down-hole are reflected 

as revenues. 

Cost of Revenues 

The primary components of cost of revenues are those salaries, expendable supplies, repairs and maintenance, costs of products sold and 

general operational costs that are directly associated with the services W-H performed for or products sold by W-H to its customers. 

Research and Development 

Research and development costs primarily represent salaries of research personnel and their related expenditures. Such activities are 

expensed when incurred. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, research and development costs were $16.3 million, 

$15.5 million and $11.2 million, respectively. 

Income Taxes 

W-H utilizes the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under the liability method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are 

recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying values of existing assets 

and liabilities and their respective tax bases based on enacted tax rates. 

W-H recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on its estimate of whether, and the extent to which, additional taxes will be due. 

These liabilities are adjusted accordingly as information on the associated tax issues becomes available. 

Use of Estimates and Assumptions 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires 

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent 

assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 

period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Financial Instruments 

W-H considers the fair value of all financial instruments (primarily long-term debt) not to be materially different from their carrying 

values at the end of each fiscal year based on management’s estimate of W-H’s ability to borrow funds under terms and conditions similar 

to those of W-H’s existing debt. 

On May 18, 2005, W-H entered into interest rate swap agreements with a total notional amount of $150.0 million related to its credit 

facility. The interest rate swap agreements have been designated as and qualify as cash flow hedging instruments. The interest rate swap 

agreements are fully effective, and have resulted in no gain or loss due to ineffectiveness being recorded in net income in the Consolidated 

Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income. W-H records the fair values of the interest rate swap agreements on its Consoli-

dated Balance Sheet. See Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information. 

With the exception of the operating leases on real property and automobile leases discussed in Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial 

Statements, W-H has no off-balance sheet debt or other off-balance sheet financing arrangements. 

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation 

Through December 31, 2005, W-H accounted for all stock-based employee compensation plans under the recognition and measurement 

provisions of APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations. Under APB No. 25, no 

stock-based employee costs are reflected in net income, as all options granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to or in excess 

of the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The following table illustrates the effect on net income and 

earnings per share as if W-H had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensa-

tion,” to stock-based employee compensation: 
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2005  2004  2003

Net income, as reported $ 48,953 $ 17,923 $ 19,261

Add: Total stock-based employee compensation 

 expense included in reported net income, 

 net of related tax effect  321  315  239
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation 
 expense determined under fair value based method 
 for all awards, net of related tax effect  (2,489)  (2,692)  (2,731)

Pro forma net income $ 46,785 $ 15,546 $ 16,769

Earnings per share

 As reported

  Basic $ 1.74 $ 0.65 $ 0.71

  Diluted $ 1.68 $ 0.64 $ 0.69

 Pro forma:      

  Basic $ 1.66 $ 0.56 $ 0.62

  Diluted $ 1.61 $ 0.55 $ 0.60

Weighted-average fair value per share of options granted $ 11.85 $ 9.61 $ 9.81 

In calculating the amount of the deduction in the table above, the fair value of each option was estimated on the date of grant using the 

Black-Scholes option valuation model. The following assumptions were used for the historical option grants in the years ended December 

31, 2005, 2004 and 2003: risk-free interest rates between 3.9% and 4.6%; dividend rates of zero; expected lives between 5.6 years and  

6.7 years; and expected volatilities between 49.6% and 50.7%.

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS 123R, “Share-Based Payment,” a revision of SFAS 123.  

In March 2005, the SEC issued Staff Bulletin No. 107 regarding its interpretation of SFAS 123R. Under SFAS 123R and SAB 107, W-H 

must expense the grant-date fair value of stock options and other equity-based compensation issued to employees. W-H adopted SFAS 

123R as of January 1, 2006 using the modified prospective method in which compensation cost is recognized based (1) on the require-

ments of SFAS 123R for all share-based payments granted after January 1, 2006 and (2) on the requirements of SFAS 123 for all awards 

granted to employees prior to January 1, 2006 that remain unvested on January 1, 2006. For the year ending December 31, 2006, W-H 

estimates that the cost relating to this pronouncement for unvested share-based payments granted prior to January 1, 2006 will be 

approximately $3.1 million, or $0.06 per share. W-H’s Compensation Committee may award additional stock options during 2006 which 

would increase the amount of this expense. 

Foreign Currency Translations 

The operations of foreign locations were translated into U.S. dollars based on the current exchange rates at the respective balance sheet dates 

and the weighted-average rates during each year for the statements of operations and comprehensive income. For the years ended December 

31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, the translation adjustments were a loss of $1.7 million and gains of $0.9 million and $3.2 million, respectively, 

and are reflected as foreign currency translation adjustments in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income. 

Earnings per Share 

Basic earnings per share excludes dilution and is computed by dividing income from continuing/discontinued operations available to 

common shareholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share are 

computed considering the dilutive effect of stock options and restricted shares. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, 

shares resulting from the assumed exercise of outstanding options and the existence of outstanding restricted shares of 950,319, 673,341 

and 752,672, respectively, were added to the denominator because the inclusion of such shares would be dilutive. For the years ended 

December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, additional shares resulting from the assumed exercise of outstanding options and the existence of 

outstanding restricted shares of 2,382, 1,404,661 and 1,495,925, respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings  

per share, because the inclusion of such shares would be anti-dilutive. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, a Replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and 

FASB Statement No. 3.” SFAS No. 154 requires retrospective application of changes in accounting principle to prior periods’ financial 

statements, rather than the use of the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, unless impracticable. If impracticable to 

determine the impact on prior periods, then the new accounting principle should be applied to the balances of assets and liabilities as of  

the beginning of the earliest period for which retrospective application is practicable, with a corresponding adjustment to equity, unless 

impracticable for all periods presented, in which case prospective treatment should be applied. SFAS No. 154 applies to all voluntary 

changes in accounting principle, as well as those required by the issuance of new accounting pronouncements if no specific transition 

guidance is provided. SFAS No. 154 does not change the previously issued guidance for reporting a change in accounting estimate or 

correction of an error. SFAS No. 154 becomes effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after 

December 15, 2005. W-H does not expect this policy to have a material impact on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

W
-H

 E
N

ER
G

Y
 S

ER
V

IC
ES

31

2
0

0
5

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
or

t



NOTE 3 >> ACQUISITIONS 

During 2005, W-H acquired Madden Systems, Inc. (“Madden”). W-H believes the acquisition of Madden brings technological advantages 

to those of its operating subsidiaries that offer wireline logging services. Total consideration for this acquisition of $3.5 million included 

$2.5 million in cash and 31,422 shares of W-H common stock, 10,998 shares of which are being held in escrow for a period of two years 

against prospective indemnity claims available to W-H, if necessary, under the purchase agreement. W-H recognized intangible assets of 

approximately $2.6 million, including trade secret technology of $2.1 million and goodwill of approximately $0.5 million. 

During 2004, W-H consummated two acquisitions in the cased-hole wireline business of its completion and workover segment for total 

consideration of approximately $4.0 million, resulting in goodwill of approximately $1.3 million. 

Unaudited proforma consolidated financial information for these acquisitions have not been included as the results were not material to 

current operations. 

NOTE 4 >> DETAIL OF CERTAIN BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS 

Activity in W-H’s allowance for doubtful accounts consists of the following (in thousands):

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2005  2004  2003

Balance, beginning of year $ 3,890 $ 4,465 $ 5,658

 Deductions for uncollectible receivables written off  (750)  (2,464)  (1,259)
 Additions charged to expense  2,103  1,889  66

Balance, end of year $ 5,243 $ 3,890 $ 4,465 

The components of inventories are as follows (in thousands):

DECEMBER 31,    2005  2004

Finished goods   $ 49,248 $ 43,380

Work-in-process    3,658  3,646

Raw materials and supplies    8,506  7,152
Inventory reserve    (6,270)  (5,861)

 Inventories   $ 55,142 $ 48,317 

Net property and equipment consists of the following (in thousands): 

DECEMBER 31,    2005  2004

Rental equipment   $ 339,673 $ 295,274

Machinery and equipment    50,294  41,958

Automobiles and trucks    23,023  20,084

Office equipment, furniture and fixtures    7,675  7,114
Building and leasehold improvements    25,862  19,038

 Total    446,527  383,468
Less — accumulated depreciation    (189,241)  (148,151)

 Property and equipment, net   $ 257,286 $ 235,317 

Depreciation expense charged to operations totaled approximately $55.4 million, $44.5 million and $35.2 million for the years ended 

December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. 

Goodwill and other intangibles consist of the following (in thousands): 

         LIFE IN 
DECEMBER 31,  2005  2004  YEARS

Goodwill $ 113,569 $ 112,784  —

License agreements  6,476  6,633  12-17

Non-compete agreements  3,286  3,183  2-5
Trade secret technology  2,100  —  —

 Total  125,431  122,600  
Less — accumulated amortization  (5,929)  (4,799)  

 Goodwill and other intangibles, net $ 119,502 $ 117,801  

Amortization expense charged to operations totaled approximately $1.2 million, $1.2 million and $0.8 million for the years ended 

December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. 
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Estimated aggregate amortization of intangible assets (in thousands) for the next 5 years is as follows: 

   2006  2007  2008  2009  2010

Amortization $ 1,083 $ 981 $ 834 $ 340 $ 252 

Accrued liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):  

DECEMBER 31,    2005  2004

Accrued compensation and benefits   $ 16,526 $ 12,800

Accrued maintenance    4,335  2,595

Accrued taxes    4,654  6,119

Accrued insurance    2,153  1,491

Accrued professional fees    1,782  1,784

Accrued liabilities associated with discontinued operations    1,551  3,105
Other accrued liabilities    12,400  7,032

 Accrued liabilities   $ 43,401 $ 34,926 

NOTE 5 >> GOODWILL

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for each of W-H’s reportable business segments for the years ended December 31, 2004 

and 2005 were as follows (in thousands): 

      DRILLING  COMPLETION  TOTAL

Balances as of January 1, 2004 $ 38,501 $ 72,953 $ 111,454

Goodwill acquired during the period  193  1,252  1,445
Goodwill adjusted for prior year acquisitions  (220)  105  (115)

Balances as of December 31, 2004  38,474  74,310  112,784

Goodwill acquired during the period  —  542  542
Goodwill adjusted for prior year acquisitions  111  132  243

Balances as of December 31, 2005 $ 38,585 $ 74,984 $ 113,569 

NOTE 6 >> CREDIT FACILITY

W-H maintains a revolving credit facility with certain lenders to provide for its cash, liquidity and other borrowing needs. The credit 

facility provides for aggregate borrowings of up to $375.0 million and matures on May 5, 2010. As of December 31, 2005, W-H had an 

outstanding loan balance of $165.0 million and approximately $7.9 million in letters of credit issued under its credit facility, resulting in an 

available borrowing capacity on such date of approximately $202.1 million. 

Amounts borrowed under the credit facility bear interest, at W-H’s election, at either a variable rate equal to LIBOR, plus a margin ranging 

from 1.0% to 2.0%, depending upon W-H’s leverage ratio, or an alternate base rate equal to the higher of (1) the prime rate or (2) the 

federal funds rate plus 0.5%, plus a margin ranging from zero to 1.0%, depending upon W-H’s leverage ratio. As of December 31, 2005, 

borrowings under the credit facility bore interest at LIBOR plus the then applicable margin of 1.25%. 

The credit facility is secured by a lien on substantially all of W-H’s property and assets, a pledge of all the capital stock of W-H’s domestic 

subsidiaries and a pledge of not greater than 65% of the capital stock of each of W-H’s top tier foreign subsidiaries. In addition, the credit 

facility is guaranteed by all of W-H’s domestic subsidiaries. The credit facility requires, among other things, that W-H maintain certain 

financial ratios, including a leverage ratio and an interest coverage ratio, and a specified net worth. The credit facility limits the amount of 

capital expenditures W-H may make, the amount of debt W-H may incur outside of the credit facility, the amount of future investments 

W-H may make, the ability of W-H to pay dividends and the ability of W-H to engage in certain business combination transactions. 

W-H entered into its credit facility in June 2004. W-H entered into a first amendment to its credit facility in May 2005 and a second 

amendment in February 2006. Financing costs associated with W-H’s original credit facility of approximately $1.6 million and financing 

costs associated with the first amendment of approximately $1.0 million will be ratably amortized to interest expense over the five year 

term of the credit facility. As a result of the repayment of W-H’s previous credit facility, W-H wrote off approximately $3.1 million in non-

cash financing costs to interest expense during 2004. This amount represented financing costs that previously had been deferred. 

NOTE 7 >> INTEREST RATE SWAP AGREEMENTS

On May 18, 2005, W-H entered into interest rate swap agreements with a total notional amount of $150.0 million related to its credit 

facility. Under these agreements, W-H receives interest at a floating rate equal to three month LIBOR plus the applicable spread under its 

credit facility and pays interest at a fixed rate of 4.24% plus the applicable spread under its credit facility. The interest rate swap agreements 

have been designated as and qualify as cash flow hedging instruments. The interest rate swap agreements are fully effective, and have 

resulted in no gain or loss due to ineffectiveness being recorded in net income in the Consolidated Statement of Operations and Compre-

hensive Income. W-H recognized net losses of approximately $0.5 million in 2005 as increases to interest expense resulting from net 

payments to the swap counterparties. W-H has recorded the fair value of the interest rate swap agreements on its Consolidated Balance 

Sheet, which was in aggregate a $3.1 million asset at December 31, 2005, based on the fair value of the instruments. As of December 31, 

2005, W-H anticipates that approximately $0.7 million of this asset will be recognized as gains resulting in reductions to interest expense 

during 2006. 
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NOTE 8 >> COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Operating Leases 

W-H leases certain real property and automobiles under operating leases that expire at various dates through 2014. Additionally, W-H 

rents various equipment under short-term, cancelable arrangements. Rental expense under operating leases and short-term rentals was 

approximately $25.5 million, $21.4 million and $20.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. 

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows (in thousands): 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2006  $ 6,543

2007   5,133

2008   4,410

2009   2,590

2010   1,633
Thereafter  3,153

  Total $ 23,462 

Employment Agreements 

W-H has entered into employment agreements with its corporate officers. Under these agreements, each officer receives a set base salary, 

subject to adjustment, an annual discretionary bonus based on specific objectives to be determined by the compensation committee, an 

automobile or automobile allowance and certain fringe benefits as may be available to such executive officers. The agreements are for 

original terms of two to three years, with certain automatic renewal provisions and contain non-competition agreements. The agreements 

also contain a termination clause, which requires a two-year payment (2.5 years in the case of W-H’s Chief Executive Officer) based on  

the officer’s salary and historical bonus amounts received, in the event of termination without cause or certain change of control events. 

W-H also has employment agreements with certain non-corporate officers. The agreements are for original terms of two to three years and 

provide for severance pay in the event of involuntary termination. 

Litigation 

W-H is from time to time a party or otherwise subject to legal proceedings, claims, investigations and other proceedings in the ordinary 

course of its business. These matters typically involve tort, workers compensation, commercial and infringement and other intellectual 

property claims. Where appropriate, W-H makes provision for a liability with respect to these claims in its financial statements in accor-

dance with generally accepted accounting principles. These provisions are reviewed periodically and adjusted to reflect the impact of 

negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of legal counsel and events pertaining to a particular case. Litigation is inherently unpredictable. 

W-H believes that it has valid defenses with respect to the legal matters pending against it. It is possible, nevertheless, that W-H’s results  

of operations or financial position could be adversely affected by the outcome of one or more of these matters. 

NOTE 9 >> INCOME TAXES 

The components of W-H’s income tax provision are as follows (in thousands): 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2005  2004 2003

CURRENT

 U.S. federal and state income taxes $ 26,000 $ 2,296 $ 975
 Foreign  2,004  2,940  2,335

  Total current  28,004  5,236  3,310

DEFERRED

 U.S. federal and state income taxes  4,446  9,106  8,468
 Foreign  (1,156)  (1,794)  367

  Total deferred  3,290  7,312  8,835

  Total provision $ 31,294 $ 12,548 $ 12,145 

The United States and foreign components of income before income taxes are as follows (in thousands): 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2005  2004  2003

United States $ 77,935 $ 34,285 $ 27,037
Foreign  2,312  (1,688)  4,509

  Total $ 80,247 $ 32,597 $ 31,546 
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The total provision for income taxes differs from an amount computed at the statutory rate as follows (in thousands): 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2005  2004  2003

Federal income tax at statutory rates $ 28,086 $ 11,410 $ 11,041

State income taxes, net of federal benefit  2,702  1,029  958

Other   (70)  17  142

Foreign income taxes, net of credits  (410)  1,161  1,124

Nondeductible items  1,233  983  129

Increase/(decrease) in valuation allowance  334  (2,038)  185
Credits  (581)  (14)  (1,434)

 Total provision $ 31,294 $ 12,548 $ 12,145 

The significant components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows (in thousands): 

DECEMBER 31,    2005  2004

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

 Net operating loss carry-forwards   $ 2,759 $ 2,642

 Accruals not currently deductible for tax purposes    5,452  4,656

 Write-off of bad debts    1,348  789

 Inventory costs capitalized for tax purposes    565  329

 Credit carry forwards    4,320  422
 Other    753  1,230

  Total gross deferred tax assets    15,197  10,068
 Less — valuation allowance    (1,872)  (1,538)

  Net deferred tax assets    13,325  8,530

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

 Tax depreciation in excess of book depreciation    (31,729)  (21,911)

 Tax amortization in excess of book amortization    (12,545)  (9,916)
 Other    (3,640)  (1,951)

  Total gross deferred tax liabilities    (47,914)  (33,778)

  Net deferred tax liabilities   $ (34,589) $ (25,248)

Applicable U.S. deferred income taxes and related foreign dividend withholding taxes have not been provided on approximately $0.8 million 

of undistributed earnings and profits of the company’s foreign subsidiaries. W-H considers such earnings to be permanently reinvested 

outside the United States. It is not practicable to estimate the amount of deferred income taxes associated with these unremitted earnings. 

As of December 31, 2005, W-H had deferred tax assets of $7.0 million relating to $4.3 million of credit carry-forwards, $31.5 million of 

state net operating loss (“NOL”) carry-forwards and $7.9 million of foreign NOL carry-forwards. Foreign losses related to the Netherlands 

do not expire; however, our Norwegian NOL carry-forwards expire in 2013 through 2015. State NOL carry-forwards expire beginning in 

2006 until 2020. The NOL and credit carry-forwards can be used to reduce W-H’s federal, state and foreign income taxes payable in future 

years. W-H’s ability to realize the entire benefit of its deferred tax assets requires that W-H achieve certain future earnings levels prior to the 

expiration of its NOL carry-forwards. 

Valuation allowances have been established for uncertainties in realizing the benefit of tax loss and credit carry-forwards. While W-H  

expects to realize the net deferred tax assets, changes in future taxable income or in tax laws may alter this expectation. W-H could be 

required to record an additional valuation allowance against certain or all of its remaining deferred tax assets if market conditions deteriorate 

or future earnings are below current estimates. As of December 31, 2005, approximately $0.2 million of the valuation allowance relates to 

state NOL carry-forwards and $1.7 million relates to foreign NOL and credit carry-forwards. The valuation allowance increased approxi-

mately $0.3 million in 2005, decreased approximately $2.0 million in 2004, and increased $1.2 million in 2003. The $2.0 million decrease 

in 2004 was primarily due to release of the valuation allowance on the federal NOL and foreign tax credits. The increases in 2005 and 2003 

relate to amounts provided on current foreign and state losses in jurisdictions where management does not believe W-H will be able to 

utilize the losses in future periods. 

W-H recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on its estimate of whether, and the extent to which, additional taxes will be due. 

These liabilities are adjusted accordingly as information on the associated tax issues becomes available. As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, 

amounts reserved for such contingencies were $5.2 million and $7.2 million, respectively. 
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NOTE 10 >> RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Lease Agreements 

One of W-H’s subsidiaries leases its facilities from a W-H officer. For each of the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003,  

W-H paid the officer $108,000 for such annual lease costs. 

An additional W-H subsidiary leases its facilities from a company that is partially owned by a W-H officer. For the years ended December 

31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, W-H paid the company approximately $312,000, $90,000, and $90,000, respectively for such annual lease costs. 

Transactions with Penny-Farthing Press, Inc. 

W-H’s Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer is the owner of Penny-Farthing Press Inc. (“PFP”), a publishing company, which 

occasionally performs services for W-H and several of its subsidiaries. In 2005, 2004 and 2003, W-H did not make any payments to PFP 

for services. During the same periods, PFP made payments to W-H of approximately $42,000, $38,000 and $38,000, respectively, 

primarily for rental of office space. 

NOTE 11 >> SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

Stock Options 

In May 2004, W-H’s shareholders approved an amendment to W-H’s stock option plan (the “1997 Option Plan”) to increase the number 

of authorized shares to 4,900,000 to be issued under the 1997 Option Plan. Each option granted under the 1997 Option Plan contains 

such terms and conditions as may be approved by the compensation committee (the “Committee”). The options currently outstanding 

under the 1997 Option Plan vest ratably over a four-year period, commencing on the grant date, in 25% increments after each year of 

service has been completed and will expire ten years from the date the options were granted. The terms of such options also provide that  

if an optionee’s employment terminates for any reason, the option may be exercised during the three month period following such termina-

tion, but only to the extent vested at the time of such termination. As of December 31, 2005, 2,547,666 options were outstanding under 

this plan. 

Additionally, on March 29, 1999, W-H issued 900,900 options to its chief executive officer under a separate non-statutory option plan. 

These options have a 10-year term and an exercise price of $4.55 per share. As of December 31, 2005, the remaining unexercised options 

to purchase 620,000 shares of common stock were vested. 

A summary of W-H’s stock option activity for the three years ended December 31, 2005 is as follows: 

         WEIGHTED 
         AVERAGE 
       NUMBER OF  PRICE PER 
       OPTIONS  SHARE

Outstanding December 31, 2002    3,256,824 $ 12.21

 Granted    492,500  18.55

 Exercised    (88,505)  5.78
 Expired/canceled    (27,361)  16.45

Outstanding December 31, 2003    3,633,458  13.20

 Granted    561,500  18.10

 Exercised    (328,752)  4.69
 Expired/canceled    (121,014)  20.76

Outstanding December 31, 2004    3,745,192  14.43

 Granted    503,500  23.27

 Exercised    (990,045)  13.09
 Expired/canceled    (90,981)  20.77

Outstanding December 31, 2005    3,167,666  16.07

Exercisable at December 31, 2005    1,994,916 $ 13.56 

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2005: 

 OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE
  OUTSTANDING WEIGHTED AVERAGE  EXERCISABLE
  AS OF REMAINING  AS OF
  DECEMBER 31, CONTRACTUAL LIFE WEIGHTED AVERAGE DECEMBER 31, WEIGHTED AVERAGE
RANGE OF EXERCISE PRICES 2005 (IN YEARS) EXERCISE PRICE 2005 EXERCISE PRICE

$ 2.21 - 5.30 837,141 3.2 $ 4.51 837,141 $ 4.51

 15.28 - 21.75 1,311,925 7.2  17.98 636,050  17.78
 22.88 - 31.39 1,018,600 7.4  23.11 521,725  22.94

$ 2.21 - 31.39 3,167,666 6.2 $ 16.07 1,994,916 $ 13.56 
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Restricted Common Stock 

On May 12, 2004, W-H’s shareholders approved the grant of 75,000 shares of restricted common stock to W-H’s Chairman, President  

and Chief Executive Officer. Deferred stock compensation of approximately $1.3 million generated by this issuance has been recorded in 

shareholders’ equity and is being amortized to compensation expense under the provisions of FASB issued Interpretation No. 28, 

“Accounting for Stock Appreciation Rights and Other Variable Stock Option or Award Plans — interpretation of APB Opinions No. 15 

and 25.” During each of the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, W-H recognized $0.5 million in compensation expense relating 

to this restricted stock issuance. 

NOTE 12 >> 401(K) PLAN

W-H maintains a 401(k) plan that enables employees to defer up to specified percentages of their annual compensation and contribute 

such amount to the plan. W-H may contribute a matching amount for each participant equal to a discretionary percentage determined 

annually by W-H. W-H may also contribute additional amounts at its sole discretion. W-H matching contributions were approximately 

$2.7 million, $2.2 million and $1.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. 

NOTE 13 >> OPERATING SEGMENTS 

Management has elected to aggregate its business unit segments based on the differences in each segment’s customers, the products and 

services offered and other economic characteristics. Based on these requirements, management has identified the following reportable 

segments: (i) drilling related products and services and (ii) completion and workover related products and services. The accounting 

policies of the operating segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies. 

Drilling Related Products and Services 

The drilling related products and services segment provides products and services used by oil and natural gas companies, drilling 

contractors and other oilfield service companies for the drilling of oil and natural gas wells. These products and services are used 

primarily throughout North America and in select areas internationally. This segment includes the following business lines:  

(i) logging-while-drilling; (ii) measurement-while-drilling; (iii) directional drilling; (iv) down-hole drilling motors; (v) rental tools and 

(vi) drilling fluids. 

Completion and Workover Related Products and Services 

The completion and workover related products and services segment provides products and services primarily to customers onshore  

in the Gulf Coast region and offshore in the Gulf of Mexico. These products and services include: (i) cased-hole wireline logging, 

perforating, tubing conveyed perforating and associated rental equipment; (ii) polymers and specialty chemicals; (iii) rental tools and  

(iv) coiled tubing. 

Summary Information 

W-H recognizes revenues, cost of revenues, selling, general and administrative expense, research and development expense and deprecia-

tion and amortization expense by segment. Interest expense and other income (expense) are not monitored by segment. Summarized 

information for W-H’s reportable segments is contained in the following tables (in thousands): 

As of and for the year ended December 31, 2005:  

      DRILLING  COMPLETION  CORPORATE  TOTAL

Revenues $ 409,155 $ 225,206 $ — $ 634,361

Operating Income  51,081  51,761  (11,818)  91,024

Depreciation & Amortization  36,136  20,253  250  56,639

Total assets  369,930  228,169  24,676  622,775
Capital expenditures  54,710  34,154  103  88,967 

As of and for the year ended December 31, 2004:  

      DRILLING  COMPLETION  CORPORATE  TOTAL

Revenues $ 302,788 $ 159,640 $ — $ 462,428

Operating Income  22,651  30,997  (10,028)  43,620

Depreciation & Amortization  29,380  16,011  274  45,665

Total assets  333,518  199,119  15,974  548,611
Capital expenditures  55,166  27,036  205  82,407 

As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003:  

      DRILLING  COMPLETION  CORPORATE  TOTAL

Revenues $ 242,085 $ 125,098 $ — $ 367,183

Operating Income  26,881  22,546  (9,713)  39,714

Depreciation & Amortization  23,237  12,476  319  36,032

Total assets, net of assets held for sale  273,354  188,553  8,831  470,738

Capital expenditures  41,780  23,504  136  65,420 
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W-H operates in the United States, the North Sea and other geographic regions. The following is summary information by geographic 

region (in thousands): 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,    2005  2004  2003

REVENUES

 United States   $ 563,304 $ 410,706 $ 305,702

 North Sea    34,331  24,513  36,390
 Other    36,726  27,209  25,091

  Total   $ 634,361 $ 462,428 $ 367,183 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,    2005  2004  2003

OPERATING INCOME

 United States   $ 85,857 $ 44,741 $ 34,130

 North Sea    2,209  (4,644)  2,309
 Other    2,958  3,523  3,275

  Total   $ 91,024 $ 43,620 $ 39,714 

AS OF DECEMBER 31,      2005  2004

LONG-LIVED ASSETS

 United States     $ 369,782 $ 336,740

 North Sea      9,498  15,494
 Other      9,317  10,318

  Total     $ 388,597 $ 362,552 

NOTE 14 >> INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

The following is a summary of consolidated interim information for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004  

(amounts in thousands, except per share data): 

THREE MONTHS ENDED  MARCH 31,  JUNE 30,  SEPTEMBER 30,  DECEMBER 31,

2005

Revenues $ 142,423 $ 157,294 $ 161,343 $ 173,301

Operating income  17,028  19,759  24,253  29,984

Net income  8,683  11,247  12,822  16,201

Earnings per common share

 Basic  0.31  0.40  0.45  0.57
 Diluted  0.30  0.39  0.44  0.55 

THREE MONTHS ENDED  MARCH 31,  JUNE 30,  SEPTEMBER 30,  DECEMBER 31,

2004

Revenues $ 107,544 $ 108,434 $ 115,453 $ 130,997

Operating income  9,331  10,217  9,965  14,107

Net income  4,967  1,595  5,255  6,106

Earnings per common share

 Basic  0.18  0.06  0.19  0.22

 Diluted  0.18  0.06  0.19  0.21 
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MARKET FOR, HOLDERS OF AND DIVIDENDS ON COMMON EQUITY 

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “WHQ”. The following table sets forth the high and 

low prices per share of our common stock as reported by the New York Stock Exchange. 

     HIGH  LOW 

2004

 First Quarter $ 18.05 $ 14.25
 Second Quarter  19.61  14.06

 Third Quarter  20.99  17.51
 Fourth Quarter  23.40  19.36

2005

 First Quarter  26.83  19.95
 Second Quarter  25.30  20.05

 Third Quarter  33.84  24.28
 Fourth Quarter  36.56  25.55 

As of February 17, 2006, there were 29,306,936 shares of our common stock outstanding, which were held by approximately  

86 record holders. 

We have not declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock since our initial public offering and do not intend to declare or 

pay any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. Instead, we currently intend to retain our earnings, if any, to 

finance our business and for general corporate purposes. Furthermore, our credit facility restricts our ability to pay dividends. Please  

read “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources” in 

Section 2.0 for a discussion of restrictions on our ability to pay dividends. Any future determination as to the declaration and payment of 

dividends will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on then existing conditions, including our financial condition, 

results of operations, contractual restrictions, capital requirements, business prospects and other factors that our Board of Directors 

considers relevant.

10.0 >>  MARKET FOR OUR COMMON EQUITY AND 
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

W-H Energy Services, Inc. 
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This Annual Report may contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 

(the “Securities Act”) and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) that involve risks, 

uncertainties and assumptions. The words “believe,” “expect,” “plan,” “intend,” “estimate,” “project,” “will,” “could,” “may,” 

and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Actual results may differ materially from the 

results discussed in the forward-looking statements as a result of important risk factors including, but not limited to, the 

current and expected future prices of crude oil and natural gas, the level of exploration, development and production activity 

of, and the corresponding capital spending by, our customers, the development and implementation of new technologies and 

weather conditions in offshore markets. For additional information, please refer to our filings with the Securities and Exchange 

Commission specifically our 10-K. A copy of our 10-K is available on our Web site at www.whes.com.

>>  FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS
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CORPORATE DIRECTORY

Directors

Kenneth T. White, Jr. 

Chairman, President and CEO

Milton L. Scott 

Independent Consultant

John R. Brock 

Chief Financial Officer  

Episcopal Diocese of Texas

James D. Lightner 

President and CEO 

Orion Energy Partners

Christopher Mills 

Chief Executive Officer 

North Atlantic Smaller Companies Trust

Robert H. Whilden 

Private Investments 

Former Senior Vice President, 

General Counsel and Secretary 

BMC Software, Inc.

Executive Management

Kenneth T. White, Jr. 

Chairman, President, CEO and Director

Jeffrey L. Tepera 

Vice President and CFO

William J. Thomas, III 

Vice President

Glen J. Ritter 

Vice President

Ernesto Bautista, III 

Vice President and Corporate Controller

Stuart J. Ford 

Vice President and Intellectual  

Property Counsel

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Corporate Headquarters

W-H Energy Services, Inc. 

10370 Richmond Avenue, Suite 990 

Houston, Texas 77042 

(713) 974-9071

Company Stock

W-H Energy Services, Inc. common stock trades under the 

symbol “WHQ” on The New York Stock Exchange.

Common Stock Transfer Agent and Registrar

Computershare Investor Services 

P.O. Box 1596 

Denver, Colorado 80201 

(303) 262-0600

Annual Meeting

We have scheduled our annual meeting of stockholders to 

begin at 10:00 am, Central Standard Time on May 10, 2006, at:

10370 Richmond 

Suite 105 

Houston, Texas 77042

Legal Counsel

Bracewell & Giuliani LLP 

711 Louisiana Street, Suite 2300 

Houston, Texas 77002 

(713) 223-2300

Auditors

Grant Thornton LLP 

333 Clay Street 

2700 Three Allen Center 

Houston, Texas 77002

Shareholder Inquiries

Information about the company, including all quarterly 

earnings releases and financial filings with the U.S. Securities 

and Exchange Commission, can be accessed via our web site 

at www.whes.com

Shareholder inquiries can also be directed  

to Investor Relations via our web site at  

www.whes.com or by calling (713) 974-9071.

2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K

Copies of the company’s 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K 

as filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission 

can be accessed via our web site at www.whes.com

Copies can also be obtained by contacting  

Investor Relations via our web site at  

www.whes.com or by calling (713) 974-9071.

SEC Certification

The certifications by the Chief Executive Officer and the 

Chief Financial Officer of W-H Energy Services, Inc., 

required under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 

2002, have also been filed as exhibits to the company’s 2005 

Annual Report on Form 10-K.

NYSE Certification

The Chief Executive Officer of W-H Energy Services, Inc. 

made an unqualified certification to the NYSE with respect 

to the company’s compliance with the NYSE corporate 

governance listing standards in May 2005.



“IF YOUR SHIP DOESN’T COME IN, SWIM OUT TO IT.”

10370 Richmond Avenue
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Houston, TX  77042
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